
ZC 0615/09  Page 1 of 2 

Minutes: Russell Township Zoning Commission 
  Russell Town Hall 
  June 15, 2009 
 
Present: Richard E. Snyder, Chairman 
  Bruce Murphy 
  Donna Weiss Carson 
  Wendy Bruzas 
  Ben Kotowski 
  Diana Steffen, Secretary 
 
Also in attendance:  Ric Machnics, Zoning Inspector, and Jim Dickinson, Chairman of 
the Board of Trustees.   
 
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m.   
 
MINUTES OF MAY 18, 2009 – Mr. Murphy made the motion to approve the minutes 
as submitted, Mr. Kotowski seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
PERMITTED USES IN FRONT YARD – Mr. Snyder said that before talking with the 
Geauga County Planning Commission he reviewed the County Model Zoning Resolution 
with regard to definitions concerning yard, front yard, setback line, lot line, etc.  He 
handed out these definitions and read them aloud.  Mr. Snyder said he realized that 
Russell's definitions were slightly different from the County Model, and proposed that the 
Commission use the draft amendment they have already written, but replace existing 
definitions with those in the County Model.  He explained that this should resolve any 
confusion over the front, rear and side yards.  He has spoken to David Dietrich, who 
agreed that this will resolve the problem.  Mr. Snyder said that prior to the next meeting 
he will review the Zoning Resolution to see if the new definitions concerning "yard" will 
affect anything else.  The revised proposed amendment will then be sent for informal 
review to the G.C.P.C.   
 
FOOD SERVICE/PERMITTED USES IN C-S ZONE – Mr. Murphy said he used the 
Access Geauga website to determine lot size, building square footage and impervious 
coverage of fast food restaurant properties in Geauga County, specifically in Chester, 
Middlefield and Bainbridge.  He handed out his figures, which he emphasized were 
estimated for this project, along with the lot sizes of the C-S lots at the S.R. 306 and 87 
intersection.  Mr. Murphy said that his conclusion was that there were three locations that 
could fit a fast food restaurant with drive-through without exceeding the impervious 
coverage limit.  Since liquor is not permitted he believed the fast food model to be the 
most viable type of restaurant model at the intersection.  Mr. Murphy's research centered 
on the larger fast food restaurants, and Mr. Snyder noted that smaller ones could also fit 
on several lots.  Mr. Snyder said the difference between this intersection and the locations 
of existing fast food restaurants elsewhere is the higher speed limit here.   
 
Mr. Snyder said that in the past people have said the C-S zone is very restrictive, and he 
would like to see the vacant lots used for the benefit of the Township residents.  Mr. 
Machnics noted that when the BP lot was for sale most of the requests he received 



ZC 0615/09  Page 2 of 2 

involved food service as well as a principal use.  Mr. Dickinson said the Guide Plan states 
the C-S zone uses are to be aimed at Russell residents, and he felt that with no one asking 
to put in a restaurant, it could be risky to allow them.  Once sewers are installed it will be 
harder to restrict the C-S uses.  Mr. Murphy suggested writing an amendment but not 
putting it in the Zoning Resolution until someone requests a particular food service.  If 
that food service is acceptable to the Township then they can pass the amendment 
without delay.  Ms. Bruzas said the Commission seemed to be reaching consensus to be 
more restrictive and to prohibit drive-throughs in order to prevent fast food franchises.  
Ms. Weiss Carson said she agreed with Mr. Dickinson, and would not want to see several 
fast food restaurants at the intersection.  In other communities, once one is built then 
others cluster in the same area.  Mr. Kotowski suggested that specialty food service 
without drive-throughs, such as coffee shops and ice cream stores, would be appropriate.  
Circle K could fit but fast-food restaurants would not work without drive-throughs.   
 
As a result of the discussion, the Chairman suggested drafting two options.  Mr. 
Kotowski will draft up wording to allow specialty food service, and Mr. Murphy will 
draft up wording to allow restaurants.  Parking, noise, buffers must be considered, and 
they will research the County Model and other townships' zoning resolutions.   
 
ZONING COMMISSION GOALS – Mr. Snyder explained that annually mid-year the 
Commission submits the following year's goals to the Board of Trustees, plus an update 
on its progress on the current year's goals.  The Commission reviewed the Goals and 
agreed that the next topic to work on should be the possibility of a new zoning district for 
those properties with conservation easements.  Mr. Dickinson suggested inviting Ed 
Meyers, legal counsel for the Western Reserve Land Conservancy, to come to a meeting.  
He also suggested the Commission talk to Rich Cochran, director of the W.R.L.C., and to 
the County Auditor regarding the tax situation.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS – Mrs. Steffen reported that the Phase II educational program, 
GreenScaping, held at The West Woods park picnic shelter on May 20th, brought 36 
attendees, six exhibitors and four speakers.  Topics were native plants, organic lawn care, 
soil testing and types of soil, and composting.   
 
There being no other business, Mr. Kotowski moved to adjourn, Mr. Murphy seconded 
and the meeting adjourned at 8:49 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Diana Steffen                               Date  Richard E. Snyder      Date 
Secretary      Chairman 
 
 
 
zcmins069 


